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CITY OF YUBA CITY 

STAFF REPORT 

  

Agenda Item 10 
   

 

Date: September 3, 2019 
 
To: Honorable Mayor & Members of the City Council 
 
From: Police Department  
 
Presentation By: Commander Brian Baker  

 
 

Summary 
 

Subject: Purchase three (3) Chevrolet Tahoe SUV’s 
 

Recommendation: A. After utilizing the Formal Bid Process, authorize the City Manager to 
award a contract to the lowest bidder for three (3) 2WD Chevrolet Tahoe 
SUVs for an amount not to exceed $117,000.  Two (2) of these vehicles 
were approved in the FY 19/20 capital acquisition budget. 

 
 B.   Authorize a supplemental budget appropriation in the amount of $72,173 

to replace Police Patrol Unit 16-14 along with associated equipment and 
installation expenses.  This amount also includes an additional 
appropriation of $17,707 to replace unit 15-11.        

 

C.  Award an extension (amendment) to an existing contract with Cop Shop 
Installation of Yuba City, CA for vehicle equipment and installation in the 
total amount of an additional $61,151.47 under section 8-8.3 of the 
Purchasing Policies and Procedures, with a finding that such a 
negotiated price is fair and reasonable 

 

D. Award a contract to Sutter Buttes Communication of Yuba City, CA for 
mobile radios in the amount of $8,322.44  

 

E. Award a contract to DATA 911 of Poway, CA for two mobile data 
terminals for an amount of $19,000. 

 
Fiscal Impact: $208,173 Vehicle Replacement Account #6610-69401; $136,000 already 

authorized in FY19/20 capital acquisition budget.   
 
 

Purpose: 
 

Purchase of vehicles for the Police Department 
 
Background: 
 

Each year Fleet Maintenance staff reviews the City’s vehicles to determine which are recommended 
for replacement. This is done by reviewing the age of the vehicle, the mileage on the vehicle and the 
anticipated maintenance cost if the vehicle remains in service. For the  2019/2020 fiscal year, 
Council approved the capital acquisition budget including $136,000 (purchase and equipment price) 
for two (2) SUV police vehicles, one (1) new K-9 vehicle and one (1) replacement vehicle for unit 15-
11. Although 15-11 was no longer fit for day to day patrol use, it was a suitable vehicle to be 
assigned to one of the school resource officers that is assigned to the local schools.   
 



   

Patrol unit 16-14 was totaled as a result of collision that occurred in 2018.  Since that time, the 
Police Department has been without that vehicle or a replacement.  Finance staff has received a 
payment in the amount of $25,000 from State Farm insurance as a payout from the collision.  This 
vehicle was not included in the FY 19/20 budget process as Finance Department staff was still trying 
to obtain the payout for the damaged vehicle.   
 
Analysis: 
 

Police Department staff estimates that three patrol vehicles will cost approximately $117,000.  Two 
of the three patrol vehicles were authorized in the 19/20 capital acquisition budget, however, the 
replacement for unit 16-14 was not.  Staff is seeking a supplemental budget appropriation for the 
replacement of unit 16-14.  Unit 16-14 was totaled as a result of a collision in 2018.  Finance 
Department staff worked with State Farm insurance and received a payment of $25,000 for the 
damages to 16-14.  This amount was the maximum amount allowed under the other insured’s policy 
limits.  With this insurance payment there is $35,364 in the vehicle replacement fund to replace 16-
14.  It is estimated that the vehicle cost will be $39,000.  All of the police related equipment from 16-
14 is able to be repurposed and has already been removed from the damaged vehicle.  This 
equipment includes, the Mobile Data Terminal, Mobile Camera system, police radio, and light bar.  
The total cost to replace unit 16-14 inclusive of installation of the repurposed equipment is estimated 
at $56,619.   
 
Fleet Maintenance determined that 15-11 was no longer suitable for day to day patrol use, however 
the vehicle would be suitable for one of the two school resource officers to utilize.  By doing this the 
department was able to prolong the life of an existing resource.  When staff completed the budget 
request for the replacement of 15-11, the estimate was $17,707 short of what the actual projected 
cost is going to be.  This is due to the fact that the Mobile Data Terminal, the radio, and light bar, 
were not able to be used on the replacement vehicle.   
 
Unit 17-10 and Unit 99-26 have an excess of funds within the vehicle replacement fund. Staff is 
seeking authorization to move approximately $26,147 from unit 99-26, and $10,662 from unit 17-10. 
 With the movement of these funds Staff will be able to purchase and equip the replacement for 16-
14, along with the replacement of 15-11.   
 
Staff also researched the options for equipping the vehicles with the necessary emergency 
equipment.  Staff recommends the purchase and installation of equipment from Cop Shop 
Installation of Yuba City, CA, by utilizing Purchasing Policy section 8-8.3 which states, “Bidding may 
be dispensed with when it is in the best interest of the City to negotiate an extension of an existing 
contract for supplies or technical services, based upon satisfactory performance, such negotiated 
price must be fair and reasonable. This shall also apply to products and services purchased through 
prior recent bidding.”   Council awarded the purchase of equipment and installation to Cop Shop 
Installation of Yuba City, CA in March 2019 for similar vehicles. 
 
Since two of the vehicles are new builds it is necessary to purchase two new mobile radios.  Staff 
has obtained a quote from Sutter Buttes Communication in the amount of $8,322.44 to purchase 
new radios for the two new vehicles.   
Two of the vehicles will also need new Mobile Data Terminals (MDT’s),  Staff has worked with the 
Information Technology Division and determined the cost of two new mobile data terminals and 
associated hardware is $19,000.  A quote was not obtained as these items are purchased routinely 
from DATA 911.   
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The computers are designed for industrial environments that include, extreme heat, extreme cold, 
vibration and shock.  The computers have been hardened for everyday use in a non-office 
environment. 
Both Sutter Buttes Communication and DATA 911 are sole source vendors with the City of Yuba 
City for the purchase of radio related equipment, and MDT’s.  Sutter Buttes Communication is a 
local authorized direct vendor that provides both hardware and technological support for the radio 
system the police department utilizes.  DATA 911 has been the sole provider for MDT’s for a 
number of years and also provides the camera systems for the patrol vehicles that are equipped 
with MDT’s.  Staff has a great working knowledge of how the DATA 911 products function and there 
is an established infrastructure within the department of existing DATA 911 products.  Going with a 
vendor other than DATA 911 would cause the City to incur additional unnecessary expense.       
 

Cost Breakdown per vehicle 
 

Unit Number Vehicle Cost Cop Shop Sutter Buttes Communication Decals for Vehicles DATA 911 Total Cost Per Vehicle
16-14 Replacement $39,000 16,719.12 0 $900 0 $56,619
15-11 Replacement $39,000 $24,146.25 4161.22 $900 $9,500 $77,707

New K-9 Vehicle $39,000 $20,286.10 4161.22 $900 $9,500 $73,847  
 
In the middle of August 2019, staff received notification from General Motors that the deadline to 
order 2020 police vehicles will be the end of September 2019.  If vehicles are not ordered by then 
there will be an approximate ten-month waiting period until 2021 vehicles can be ordered.  There are 
several downsides to this option.  First being a potential price increase of the individual police 
vehicles.  Second being the department has added the third K-9 to the organization and that handler 
is currently using the only backup K-9 unit that the fleet maintenance staff does not recommend for 
extended day to day use.  If approved by Council, Staff has proposed the following timeline to be 
within the City’s purchasing policies and be able to obtain 2020 model year vehicles.   
 
9/3/19 – Council Approval  
9/4/19-9/6/19 1st posting in Appeal Democrat.  
9/6/19-9/15/19 – 2nd posting in Appeal Democrat during this time frame.  
9/16/19 – Bid opening by City Clerk.  
9/17/19 – Get PO processed, and submit to vendor.  
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 

$208,173 Vehicle Replacement Account #6610-69401; $136,000 already authorized in FY19/20 
capital acquisition budget.   
 

Funding Source Amount 

FY 19/20 Budget 136,000
Transfer from 99-26 $26,147
Transfer from 17-10 $10,662

Currently Available 16-14 $35,364
Total $208,173  

 
 
Alternatives: 
 



   

a) Do not approve the purchase of the two vehicles that were authorized in the FY 19/20 capital 
acquisition budget. 
b) Do not approve the supplemental budget appropriation for the replacement of unit 16-14. 
c) Do not approve the purchase of new mobile radios. 
d) Do not approve the purchase of a new Mobile Data Terminals.   
 
Recommendations: 
 

 A. After utilizing the Formal Bid Process, authorize the City Manager to 
award a contract to the lowest bidder for three (3) 2WD Chevrolet Tahoe 
SUVs for an amount not to exceed $117,000.  Two (2) of these vehicles 
were approved in the FY 19/20 capital acquisition budget. 

 

 B.   Authorize a supplemental budget appropriation in the amount of $72,173 
to replace Police Patrol Unit 16-14 along with associated equipment and 
installation expenses.  This amount also includes an additional 
appropriation of $17,707 to replace unit 15-11.        

 

C.  Award an extension (amendment) to an existing contract with Cop Shop 
Installation of Yuba City, CA for vehicle equipment and installation in the 
total amount of an additional $61,151.47 under section 8-8.3 of the 
Purchasing Policies and Procedures, with a finding that such a 
negotiated price is fair and reasonable 

 

D. Award a contract to Sutter Buttes Communication of Yuba City, CA for 
mobile radios in the amount of $8,322.44  

 

E. Award a contract to DATA 911 of Poway, CA for two mobile data 
terminals for an amount of $19,000. 

 
Attachments 
 

Attachment A - Quote from Sutter Buttes Communication, two new mobile radios 
Attachment B - Quote from Cop Shop Installation, vehicle equipment and installation for the 
replacement of 16-14 
Attachment C- Quote from Cop Shop Installation, vehicle equipment and installation for the 
replacement of 15-11 
Attachment D- Quote from Cop Shop Installation, vehicle equipment and installation for the 
addition of a new K-9 unit 

 

Prepared By:    Submitted By: 
 

 
/S/ Brian Baker    /s/ Michael Rock 
Brian Baker    Michael Rock 
Police Commander     City Manager 
 
Reviewed By: 
 

Finance    RB 

Police    RL 

City Attorney    SLC by email 



 
 
 

ATTACHMENT A 





 
 

ATTACHMENT B 







 
 

ATTACHMENT C 









ATTACHMENT D 
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